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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

caseng@ CV 0226 W AJB

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT FOR:

(1)) VIOLATION OF INDIVIDUALS WITH
EDUCATION DISABILITIES ACT (IDEA)
20 U.S.C. § 1400, ET SEQ;

(2) VIOLATION 'OF SUPREMACY
CLAUSE;

C.S., by and through his Conservator, MARY
STRUBLE on behalf of himself and all others
similarly situated, i

Plaintiff,
V.

CLAUSE; AND
4 COMPLAINT FOR
PERMANENT INJUNCTION

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF
EDUCATION, a State Agency
Defendant.

N Nt Nt N N N S Nt S et Nt N

(3) VIOLATION OF EQUAL PROTECTION

Plaintiff, C.S. by and through his Conservator, MARY STRUBLE
(“Plaintiff”), for his class action complaint against Defendant, CALIFORNIA
DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION (“Defendant™), alleges as follows:

L
JURISDICTION AND VENUE

1. This court has original jurisdiction of this action under 28 U.S.C.

§ 1331 because it arises under the Individuals with Disabilities Act (“IDEA™), 20
U.S.C. § 1400, et seq., and related Federal regulations. Additional claims in this

case arise under the laws of the State of California, California Education Code

Class Action Complaint For Permanent Injunction
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§ 56000, et seq. and related California State regulations. Supplemental jurisdiction
over these state claims is conferred under 28 U.S.C. § 1367 (a).

2. Venue is proper in this Court under 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b). Plaintiff
resides within the County of San Diego, in the Southern District of California.
Defendant is a state agency with offices throughout the state, including San Diego,
in the Southern District of California. All of the events affecting Plaintiff occurred
within the Southern District of California.

IL.
NATURE OF ACTION

3. This action is brought as a class action on behalf of all special
education students (“Students”), and their parents, who had Administrative Due
Process Hearings heard by Defendant’s contractor, California Office of
Administrative Hearings, Special Education Division (“OAH”), Administrative
Law Judges (“ALJs”), between July 1, 2005 and present (the “Class Period”), and
who have received less than complete relief as afforded under IDEA. The remedy
being sought is for a Permanent Injunction enjoining Defendant from renewing,
contracting with, or otherwise engaging OAH and its ALJs, as its contractor to
provide Due Process Hearings and Mediations beginning July 1, 2008, when its
current contract expires. This Permanent Injunction is required due to OAH’s
violations of IDEA, and Defendant’s failure to oversee and correct OAH’s actions,
in violation of IDEA, which has harmed, and will continue to harm Plaintiff and
the Class, as set forth below.

4. During the Class Period, Defendant, as recipienf of $29 million of

federal funds, ear-marked for provision of due process to California’s special

education students, contracted with OAH to conduct Mediations and Due Process

Hearings throughout the state in order to enforce IDEA as it applies to Students
rights to a free appropriate public education (FAPE”), and failed to supervise,
audit, account, or uphold IDEA, which enabled OAH to administer Due Process

Class Action Complaint For Permanent Injunction 2
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Hearings and render Decisions that are contrary to IDEA and related laws and
procedures because the OAH ALIJs do not have the minimum required knowledge,
training, or expertise required by IDEA, to the great detriment of disabled students,
and their parents, who are the intended third party beneficiaries of the Interagency
Agreement between Defendant and OAH.

5. During the Class Period, Defendant and OAH were bound by an
Interagency Agreement under which the $29 million of federal funds were
entrusted to Defendant, as the local agency, to either conduct the Mediations and
Due Process Hearings, or to contract with an outside agency to conduct them.

6.  The requirements of the Interagency Agreement, specify that OAH
“agrees to conduct due process hearings in accordance with regulations section
3080 et seq., Title 5, California Code of Regulations.” A true copy of the
Interagency Agreement is attached hereto as Exhibit 1.

7. Additionally, the Interagency Agreement, Exhibit 1, requires that each
of OAH ALJs complete 80 hours of training before any ALJ conducts any Due
Process Hearings, and requires 80 hours additional training annually. Upon
information and belief, to date, one week in November has been dedicated to
training, with additional sporadic one-day training, from time to time. Howeuver,
this falls far short of 80 hours, and hearings were conducted between July, 2005
and November, 2005 by ALJs without the required 80 hours of training.

8. Title 5, California Code of Regulations § 3082.1 sets forth the
minimum Qualifications and Training of Hearing Officers, which states, in
pertinent part:

(a) The hearing shall be conducted by a hearing officer knowledgeable in
administrative hearings who satisfies the requirements set forth herein and who is
employed by, or under contract with, a state agency or nonprofit organization that
has entered into an agreement with the department to conduct due process

hearings.

Class Action Complaint For Permanent Injunction 3
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(b) Hearing officers shall be attorneys licensed to practice law in California
for at least five years immediately preceding his or her appointment, of which at
least two years shall have involved contested cases in a trial court or the conduct of]
formal hearings or inquiries, and shall have involved experience in the presentation
of evidence and the examination of witnesses before trial courts or quasi-judicial
administrative bodies. Experience acquired as a hearing officer in formal quasi-
judicial administrative proceedings may be substituted year for year to the required
two years of experience.

(¢) In addition to the “Minimum Qualifications” as set forth in subdivision
(b), no hearing officer may assume his or her duties unless the presiding officer of
the body responsible for conducting due process hearings determines that he or
she:

(1) Possess knowledge of the provisions of 20 U.S.C. sections 1400 et seq.,
federal and state regulations pertaining to that title, and legal interpretations of that
title by federal and state courts;

(2) Possess knowledge of the provisions of Education Code sections 56000
et seq., federal and related state statutes and implementing regulations, and the
legal interpretations of those statutes and regulations by federal and state courts;

(3) Possess the knowledge and ability to conduct hearings in accordance
with appropriate, standard legal practice;

(4) Possess the knowledge and ability to render and write decisions in
accordance with appropriate, legal practice.

(d) The contractor responsible for conducting due process hearings shall
ensure every hearing officer has completed at least 80 hours of training before
conducting a due process hearing...(emphasis supplied).

9. The Interagency Agreement also requires that the presiding ALJs are
responsible for ensuring that the ALJs are properly trained and knowledgeable

prior to conducting Due Process Hearings.

Class Action Complaint For Permanent Injunction 4
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| 1.
THE PARTIES

10.  During the Class Period, Plaintiff and each member of the Class
participated as a party in an Administrative Due Process Hearing concerning the
rights of a disabled student before the OAH ALIJs, in order to exhaust
administrative remedies, and to seek relief afforded under IDEA and related
statutes. These ALJs were required to be knowledgeable and trained in special
education law, and to be governed, monitored, overseen and supervised by
Defendant.

1. Neither Plaintiff nor any member of the Class participated in training
the OAH ALlJs.

12.  During the Class Period, and continuing, the OAH ALJs are not
properly trained, are not knowledgeable in special education law, and related
statutes and case law interpretations of these laws, have no expertise, which is the
specific requirement for exhaustion of remedies, and, to date, due to the lack of
monitoring, governance, oversight and management of Defendant, OAH’s ALJs
have written Decisions that are contrary to law, unduly favorable to school
districts, and which deny a free appropriate public education to disabled students.

13.  Additionally, Defendant, to whom OAH ALJs are required to collect
and report data, has continuously overlooked the OAH ALJs’ false statements,
mischaracterizations of Hearing outcomes, and skewed statistics which are
published by OAH under the auspices of Defendant, on Defendant’s website.
Defendant, by its failure to monitor, is responsible for OAH’s intentionally
defrauding Plaintiff and members of the Class.

14. Moreover, as the exhaustion requirement of IDEA is mandatory,
attempts by Students to circumvent this requirement based upon the abject lack of
training and lack of expertise of the OAH ALIJs, has resulted in federal courts
throughout the state dismissing IDEA lawsuits on the grounds of failure to exhaust

Class Action Complaint For Permanent Injunction
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administrative remedies, at least once indicating in the Order of Dismissal that “if
Plaintiffs believe that the ALJ assigned to hear the case is not qualified, they may
exercise a peremptory challenge or seek disqualification of the ALJ, “ citing Cal.
Code Regs. tit. 1 §§1034, 11512(c) 2007, or to raise the issue of the non-
qualification on appeal. (USDC, SDCA Case No. 06CV2451 BTM (RBB).

15.  The IDEA specifies a 45-day time period from the time the case
number is assigned to the time of Decision, 20 U.S.C. § 1415(g)(2). The purpose
of this stringent timeline is to protect the rights of Students, who are either in an
inappropriate school program, or not in school at all. Due to the lack of
qualification of the OAH ALJs, and the lack of governance by Defendant, in all but
a slim percentage of cases during the Class Period, has the Student obtained the
relief requested, resulting in an appeals process that can take years, which is time
lost for disabled students.

16.  Plaintiff, Christopher Struble, is an 18-year old, conserved student
who qualifies for special education under the eligibility category of Autism.

17. On September 4, 2007, Plaintiff filed a Mediation and Due Process
Request (the “Due Process Complaint”) with OAH against Fallbrook Union High
School District (“the District”). The gravamen of the Due Process Complaint was
that during 4 years of high school, Plaintiff and his parents had never been advised
by the District of graduation options, including the difference between a Certificate
of Completion and a High School Diploma, until the end of the 2006-2007 school
year, during which Plaintiff was a senior. Thus, the District prevented Plaintiff’s
parents from meaningfully participating in his IEP due to the lack of discussion of
graduation options, and the District’s predetermined placement offer—the
District’s Transition Program, which was a denial of FAPE.

18.  The remedy sought by Plaintiff was compensatory education, for

Plaintiff to attend a non-public school capable of providing a FAPE, and

Class Action Complaint For Permanent Injunction 4
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conferring a diploma in the State of California, at District expense, so Plaintiff
could earn his high school diploma.

19.  The Administrative Due Process Hearing was held October 16-19,
2007.

20.  On November 20, 2007, a Decision (“the Decision”) was rendered by
OAH ALJ Susan Ruff, in which she held that the District’s actions, as stated in
paragraph 16, above, constituted procedural violations of IDEA which amounted to
a denial of FAPE to Student. The Decision (a true copy of which is attached hereto
as Exhibit 2), correctly states the two-prong mandate under Rowley requiring the
ALJ to first look at procedural violations to determine if there is a denial of FAPE,
and then, if necessary, determine whether there were any substantive violations.

21.  The Decision, Conclusions of Law 10-12, determined under the first
prong that there were procedural violations that amounted to a denial of FAPE,
rendering Plaintiff the prevailing party. The remedy for a denial of FAPE that
impacts a student’s education opportunity is compensatory education, which is
within the broad, equitable discretion of the ALJ.

22.  Rather than ending the Factual Findings and Conclusion of Law with
Plaintiff as the prevailing party, and fashioning a remedy, the ALJ went on to
examine every substantive issue and rule on them, even though they are moot
under the two-prong approach. In doing this, the ALJ, in addition to ruling that
Plaintiff was the prevailing party on the ultimate issue for which relief was sought,
also ruled, unnecessarily that the District was the prevailing party on some lesser
issues. This minimizes Plaintiff’s prevailing party status.

23.  Moreover, rather than award compensatory education as the
appropriate remedy by operation of law, the ALJ ordered Plaintiff and the District
to attend an IEP Team Meeting to agree on an appropriate remedy. This is
unlawful under IDEA as it delegates the ALJ’s authority to the District, which is

collusive and unethical. IDEA due process hearings “may not be conducted by an

Class Action Complaint For Permanent Injunction 7
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employee of the State educational agency or the local agency involved in the
education or care of the child.” 20 U.S.C. § 1415(f) (3).

24.  Plaintiff is an 18-year old special education student with an average
non-verbal IQ, who has been out of school since May, 2007, and, who, due to the
lack of governance of Defendant over the training, knowledge and ethics of the
OAH ALlJs, has no compensatory education because OAH’s Decision does not
comport with the law in that it delegates the provision of compensatory education
to the IEP Team, which includes the director of special education for the District,
in violation of 20 U.S.C. § 1415(f)(3). On December 13, 2007, in order to obtain
appropriate relief, Plaintiff filed an appeal against the District, USDC,SDCA Case
No. 07 CV 2328 JAB (CAB). Defendant, CDE, is not a party to that appeal.

25.  Defendant, CDE, is a public entity organized and existing under the
laws of the State of California, with the capacity to be sued. CDE has offices in
Sacramento, California, but oversees the provision of education throughout the
State of California through offices in Counties, including the County of San Diego,
located at 6401 Linda Vista Road, San Diego, California 92111, and within the
jurisdictional boundaries of this.Coutt. CDE receives federal funds from the
United States Department of Education pursuant to IDEA, and is mandated to
engage an agency within the state to provide parents of disabled students with an
impartial due process hearing under 20 U.S.C. § 1415 (f)(1)(A), and other dispute
resolution methods.

26.  Atall times during the Class Period, Defendant had the duty to
oversee, monitor and govern the actions and publications of OAH ALIJs pursuant to
the Interagency Agreement, in which Defendant received $29 million in federal
funds to specifically to provide Mediation and Due Process Hearings for special

education students throughout the state by qualified Hearing Officers. The

Class Action Complaint For Permanent Injunction J
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specified intended beneficiaries of the Interagency Agreement, by its own terms
and by operation of law, are special education students and their parents.

27.  Defendant failed to discharge its duties under the Interagency
Agreement, resulting in denial of the rights of special education students, including
Plaintiff and members of the Class, under IDEA and related statutes.

IV.
CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

28.  Plaintiff brings this action as a class action pursuant to Rule 23 of the
Federal Rules of Civil Procedure on behalf of a class (“the Class™) consisting of all
special education students who participated in Administrative Due Hearings before
OAH ALJs between July 1, 2005 to present, and continuing (“the Class Period”),
and failed to obtain complete relief requested, or were subject to the relief granted
to school districts, and were damaged thereby.

29. The Class is so numerous that joinder of all Class members is
impracticable. While the exact number of Class members is unknown to Plaintiff
at this time and can only be ascertained from the records maintained by Defendant,
or its agents, as of September 30, 2007, 279 hearings were conducted in which the
Student completely prevailed in 29. Therefore, the Class may be comprised of a
minimum of 250 members throughout the State of California.

30.  Plaintiff’s claims are typical of the claims of the members of the Class
since all members of the class failed to be awarded relief available to them under
IDEA due to the OAH ALIJs lack of training, lack of knowledge of the law, and the
rendering of faulty and unlawful Decisions, which Defendant failed to monitor
and/or correct in accordance with the Interagency Agreement and IDEA.

31.  Plaintiff will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the
members of the Class. Plaintiff has retained counsel competent and experienced in
complex federal litigation and special education law, and Plaintiff has no interests

antagonistic to or in conflict with the other members of the Class.

Class Action Complaint For Permanent Injunction 9
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32. A class action is superior to other available methods for the fair and
efficient adjudication of this controversy. Joinder of all Class members is
impracticable. The likelihood of individual Class members prosecuting separate
claims for a Permanent Injunction is remote. The damages suffered by Individual
Class members is ongoing, and many, or most of the Class Members have had to
undertake appellate review of the OAH ALJ’s Decisions at their own expense. To
require the Class Members to undertake the expense and burden of individual
litigation for Permanent Injunction makes it impossible for Class Members
individually to seek redress for the wrongs perpetrated by Defendant. It is
desirable for all concerned to concentrate this litigation in this particular forum.
No unusual difficulties are likely to be encountered in the management of this
Class Action.

33. A class action is also superior to other available methods for the fair
and efficient adjudication of this controversy because, if Plaintiff’s claim against
the District is resolved quickly, as hoped, another, equally representative Plaintiff
can substituted as the named Plaintiff,

34.  There are questions of law and fact common to the members of the
Class which predominate over any questions affecting any individual members.
These common questions of law and fact include, but are not limited to:

(@)  Whether Defendant violated the IDEA and the Interagency Agreement
when it selected OAH and its ALJs to carry out the mission of the IDEA mandate
for Due Process Hearings to be conducted by trained, experienced hearing officers,
who have knowledge of special education law, and related laws, regulations,
procedures and the writing of Decisions?

(b)  Whether numerous complaints by parents of disabled students, and
parent attorneys, with regard to the lack of training of OAH ALJs, and the resulting
ongoing prejudice to disabled students, have not been adequately addressed, nor

remedied by Defendant?

Class Action Complaint For Permanent Injunction 10




11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

- 20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

Case 3:08-cv-00226-&AJB Document1  Filed 02/05/2008 Page 11 of 37

(© Whether Defendant failed to monitor and enforce the training
requirements of the OAH ALJs which specify 80 hours of training for each ALJ
each year, and, in particular require 80 hours of training before an OAH ALJ can
be assigned to preside over a special education due process hearing?

(d) Whether Defendant allowed OAH to misrepresent its efficiency,
effectiveness and expertise in the Quarterly Reports mandated to be published by
Defendant to the public, without oversight, accounting, or verification of OAH’s
representations and data?

(¢)  Whether Defendant adopted and endorsed OAH’s misrepresentations
in Defendant’s annual application for federal funding to the United States Office of]
Special Education Programs (OSEP), thereby continuing the disbursement of
federal funds designed to benefit special education students and their parents, to
unqualified OAH ALIJs?

(f)  Whether Defendant allowed OAH to change its rules and procedures
without Defendant’s permission, as required under the Interagency Agreement?

(g) Whether, based upon past wrongs, which have caused the Class
ongoing and irreparable harm, Defendant should be enjoined from awarding the
next Interagency Agreement, effective July 1, 2008 to OAH’s ALJs, which will
obligate Defendant to issue a request for proposal to qualified bidders, such as law
schools, and require Defendant to award the next Interagency Agreement upon a
guaranteed commitment that the hearing officers being thoroughly trained in
special education laws, regulations, procedures, and will have the ability to write
Decisions that comport with the law, and that are not based upon a “template”, and,
most importantly, who are exclusively hearing only special education cases?

(h)  Whether there is a compelling public interest to prevent unqualified
ALJs from further violating IDEA so as to give rise to a Preliminary and

Permanent Injunction?

Class Action Complaint For Permanent Injunction 11
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35. Time is of the essence in certifying the Class, which will be the
subject of discovery timely propounded, as well as public record acts requests,
which have been ongoing, and are the basis of the information and belief alleged in
this Complaint.

36. Time is of the essence in enjoining Defendant from awarding the
Interagency Agreement to OAH, which will be further addressed in an Application
for Temporary Restraining Order against Defendant, to be filed after assignment of]
a case number herein.

37.  No monetary or equitable harm will ensue to Defendant in the
granting of a Permanent Injunction enjoining Defendant from re-awarding the
Interagency Agreement to OAH. Defendant has the opportunity to award the

federal funds earmarked for provision of mediations and due process hearings to an|

|agency which can demonstrate that its hearing officers possess the minimum

requirements set forth in the Interagency Agreement to be effective on July 1,
2008. Many attorneys representing disabled students throughout the state are
willing to volunteer time and materials to ensure that the selected agency’s hearing
officers have a minimum of 80 hours of training prior to July 1, 2008.
Additionally, any of OAH’s ALJs may apply to the next agency that receives the
Interagency Agreement, and, if accepted, can receive appropriate training under the
IDEA and related statutes to potentially offset the bias toward the districts, and
start dispensing justice for students.
V.
SUBSTANTIVE ALLEGATIONS
A. TheIDEA

38. The IDEA requires state education agencies, which receive federal
funds for providing education to children with special needs, comply with the
provisions of IDEA in identifying eligible students, (“Child Find”), and providing
a free appropriate public education (“FAPE”), to all children with disabilities

Class Action Complaint For Permanent Injunction 12
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through individualized education programs (IEPs”), pursuant to 20 U.S.C. §
1415(a).

39. An IEP is a written statement for each child with a disability that is
developed and revised in accordance with 20 U.S.C. § 1414(d) of the IDEA, and is
designed to meet each child’s unique needs. 20 U.S.C. § 1401(14).

40.  Under the IDEA, specifically, federally-funded state agencies must
“establish and maintain procedures in accordance with [20 U.S.C. § 1415]...to
ensure that children with disabilities and their parents are guaranteed procedural
safeguards with respect to the provision of a [FAPE]...by such agencies.” 20
U.S.C. § 1415(a).

41.  Under the IDEA, a child eligible for, but not provided a FAPE, and
his or her parents, is afforded two procedural avenues to guarantee relief for a local
educational agency’s (ie., the school district’s) failure to provide a FAPE: (1) an
opportunity to present a complaint to the state agency (CDE) through a complaint
procedure; and (2) an opportunity to participate in a due process hearing, pursuant
to 20 U.S.C. § 1415(b)(6)(f). When a complaint is filed against a local educational
agency, but remains unresolved “to the satisfaction of the parents within 30 days of]
receipt of the complaint, the due process hearing may occur.” 20 U.S.C. §
1415(f)(B)(ii).

42.  Alternatively, under the IDEA, the parties to a due process complaint
may enter into a written settlement agreement pursuant to the mediation process,
which is “enforceable in any state court of competent jurisdiction or in a district
court of the United States.” 20 U.S.C.

§ 1415(e)(2)(F)(iii).

43. Pursuant to 20 U.S.C. § 1415(f)(1), whenever a due process complaint

has been received, the parent shall have an opportunity for an impartial due

process hearing which shall be conducted by the state education agency. In order
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to be eligible for federal funding, as required by IDEA, California has established
impartial mediation and due process hearing procedures through the provision of
the Agreement from CDE to OAH, which, by its terms, gave OAH sole authority
over special education due process hearings on July 1, 2005. .

44.  Pursuant to 20 U.S.C. § 1415(f)(3)(A)(ii) and (iii), a due process
hearing must be:

[H]eard by a hearing officer who possesses knowledge of, and

the ability to understand, the provisions of the IDEA, federal and

state regulations pertaining to the IDEA, the legal interpretations

of the IDEA by federal and state courts, ... possesses the knowledge

and ability to conduct hearings in accordance with appropriate,

standard legal practice...and possesses the knowledge and ability

to render and write decisions in accordance with appropriate,

standard legal practice. (See, also California Education Code §
56505(c)(1)).

B. Comparison of Due Process Hearing Data Under OAH

and Under its Predecessor, Special Education Hearing
Office “SEHO”,

45.  Prior to July 1, 2005 the agency responsible for resolving disputes
between parents and local educational agencies was the Special Education Hearing
Office (“SEHO”) of the McGeorge School of Law.

46. Upon information and belief, under SEHO, quarterly data collection
was required, and in years in which SEHO held the agreement to provide due
process services, from the late 1980s through June 30, 2005, the average
percentage of cases in which the parents of the disabled student prevailed, and
were awarded relief, was slightly greater than 50%.

47.  While not ideal, SEHO’s level of experience, knowledge of special
education laws, and application of said laws to facts in rendering decisions, were

commensurate with the requirements of IDEA. Under SEHO, parents had a level
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playing field, which generally humbled the schools districts, and did not show
favoritism to them.

48. The award of the Interagency Agreement to OAH on May 25, 2005,
with projected implementation date of July 1, 2005, did not enable adequate
training of potential administrative law judges (“ALJ’s”), the great majority of
whom were hired by OAH with absolutely no special education experience, which
has denied disabled students and their parents, including Plaintiff, access to their
due process rights under IDEA.

49.  The Interagency Agreement provides that the ALJs have training to
“meet the minimum training standards specified in Section 3082.2 of Title 5,
California Code of Regulations,” and that, “Presiding ALJ’s will determine when
ALJ’s ‘have working knowledge of the laws and regulations governing services to
studeﬁts who qualify for services under the IDEA...[O]nly ALJ’s who have the
level of expertise specified in the proposed regulations, Section 3082.2 will be
assigned mediation and hearing duties’. (Exhibit “1” hereto—Scope of Work-
Training).

50.  The Agreement specifies that an official website be maintained by

OAH for the dissemination of data; to wit: http://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/se/ds/. The

biographies of the OAH special education division ALJ’s are provided on this
website. Of the 80 ALJ’s whose biographies are initially listed, only six
biographies reference any knowledge of special education. Three of the six had
been hearing officers at SEHO, or at OAH from 1984 to 1986 when OAH
previously had a special education interagency agreement. Two of the six had
previously worked at CDE. The last one of the six, states in his biography,

“National Judicial College—various subject matters, including special education.”'

! This is the biography of Karl Engeman, the former Presiding ALJ in Sacramento.

Class Action Complaint For Permanent Injunction 15
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51. On the official website a few ALJ’s report that they attended 40
hours of “conducting an administrative hearing” training in October, 2005, and a
few ALJ’s indicated undertaking mediation training in October, 2005 and June,
2006. No ALJ represented in his or her biography any recent training sessions
specifically on special education laws and procedures.

52.  Also on the official website are the Quarterly Reports required to be
provided by OAH to CDE under the Agreement. These reports show a significant
decrease in hearing decisions in favor of students. In fact, as set forth in more
detail in the section below, entitled, “C. Defendant’s Misrepresentations During the]
Class Period,” while the Quarterly Report for the Quarter January 1, 2006-March
31, 2006, paints a rosy picture that, “Students had positive outcomes in more than a
quarter of the cases heard,” the Quarterly Report shows that only 3 cases of 31
which were decided, were decided fully in favor of the student, which is only 10%.
Additionally, in this Quarter, none of the decisions rendered were made within the
45-day timeline under the IDEA.

53.  This is representative of the types of misrepresentations initiated by
OAH, and adopted by Defendant, not only in its publication of the Quarterly
Reports, but also in the data provided by Defendant to the United States Office of
Special Education Programs (OSEP), as a prerequisite for annual federal funding.

C. Defendant’s Misrepresentations During the Class Period.

54.  Plaintiff incorporates by reference each and every allegation of
Paragraphs 1 through 53 of the Complaint as though fully set forth hereat.

55.  Asarequirement for federal funding under the Interagency
Agreement, Defendant must receive, review and publish data concerning OAH’s
administration of Mediations and Due Process Hearings, which is published on
Defendant’s official website. (Copies of the Quarterly Reports are attached hereto
as Exhibits “3”-“10” hereto).
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56.  For Quarters July 1, 2005-December 31, 2005, OAH decided 32
special education cases, albeit without the required 80 hours of training. Of these
decisions, 50% were in favor of districts, 19% were in favor of parents, and 31%
were split decisions. No data was available in this report concerning how many of
the decisions were rendered within the statutory 45-day timeline. (Ex. 3; p. 3).

57.  For Quarter January 1, 2006-March 31, 2006, OAH decided 31 cases,
about which the report stated, “Students had positive outcomes in more than a
quarter of the cases heard.” (Ex. 4, p. 6). Actually, only 3 cases were decided fully
in favor of the student (10%), 23 cases were decided fully in favor of the district
(74%) and 5 cases were split decisions (16%). (Ex. 4, p. 6). The report further
stated, “9 decisions were rendered within the 45-day or extended timelines.” (Ex.
4, p. 7). The actual number of decisions rendered with the statutory 45-day
timeline was zero (0) (Ex. 4, p. 7). The number of decisions within the extended
timeline was 9, and 22 decisions were rendered after the timelines and extensions
had expired. (Ex. 4, p. 7).

58.  For Quarter April 1, 2006-June 30, 2006, which is the close of the first
year, OAH had the Interagency Agreement, OAH decided 56 special education
cases. Only 2 cases were decided fully in favor of the student (4%), 38 cases were
decided fully in favor of the district (67%) and 16 cases were split decisions (29%).
(Ex. 5, p. 7). Students don’t file for due process to obtain partial relief, so the 4%
success rate (although, it was not misrepresented in the Quarterly Report), is
devastating. What was misrepresented in this Quarterly Report was, “Of the 56
decisions rendered, 32 (57%) were issued within the requisite timeframe and 24
were issued after the established timeframe.” (Ex. 5, p.7). Actually, only 2
decisions were rendered within the statutory 45-day timeline (3.5%) (Ex 5, p. 8),
28 decisions were decided within the “extended” timeline, and 25 decisions were
issued after the timelines and extensions had expired (Ex. 5, p. 8). This report

states, “OAH recognized the need to improve decisions timelines.” (Ex. 5, p. 3).
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